
 

 

Sabrina Bazelais  
Direct: 201.604.4083 
sbazelais@smsm.com 

 

 

777 Third Avenue| Suite 2400 | New York, NY 10017 | T: 212.651.7500 | F: 212.651.7499 

 
      June 13, 2025 

 

Via Certified Mail and E-Mail  
Adam Birbrower, Esquire 
Birbrower Law Firm 
P.O. Box 631 
Peekskill, New York 10566 
adamb@birbrowerlaw.com 

 
Re:   Cease and Desist Demand Unlawful Use of "Swing Remix” Brand within 

Manhattan 
 

Dear Mr. Birbrower, 

Our office represents the interests of Mr. Paolo Lanna. This letter is in response to the cease 
and desist notice you issued to Mr. Lanna dated August 25, 2022. This letter also serves to notify 
you of a reciprocal violation by your client, Mr. Spencer Weisbond, under the terms of the 
partnership agreement both parties entered into on January 30, 2018. 

1.  Rebuttal of Cease and Desist 

First and foremost, Mr. Lanna is the founder and creator of the Swing Remix brand. The 
Swing Remix brand was launched in 2007 with Mr. Lanna as the sole creator, designer and 
visionary. Mr. Lanna never sold or licensed the rights to the use of the Swing Remix logo and all 
associated promotional materials to Mr. Weisbond or anyone else.   

 Further, as stipulated in the aforementioned partnership agreement, both Mr. Lanna and 
Mr. Weisbond are permitted to host independent dance events under different brandings. Mr. 
Lanna has complied with these terms strictly, operating under a new brand known as 
"LindyLand". Mr. Weisbond has not. Thus, Mr. Weisbond has been operating in violation of both 
the 1/30/18 partnership agreement, and Mr. Lanna’s intellectual property rights.    

2.  Counter Cease and Desist 

Mr. Weisbond has been actively hosting dance events under the "Swing Remix" name 
within Manhattan, a clear breach of the agreement which explicitly states, "both Spencer and Paolo 
are free to host their own dance events independent of Swing Remix if they choose, provided the 
designated event is held outside of Manhattan." Enclosed are copies of the aforementioned 
partnership agreement, as well as promotional materials and screenshots evidencing Mr. 
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Weisbond’s activities in Manhattan under the "Swing Remix" brand. These actions are clear 
violations of the agreement and infringe on the terms Mr. Lanna and Mr. Weisbond mutually 
agreed upon to avoid competition within the specified geographic area. 

We hereby demand that Mr. Weisbond immediately cease all use of the "Swing Remix" 
name for any events within Manhattan. Failure to comply with this demand will leave Mr. Lanna 
no choice but to seek judicial relief. 

3.  Proposed Resolutions 

In an effort to resolve this matter constructively and avoid judicial intervention, Mr. Lanna 
proposes the following alternatives: 

 Mutual Independence  

Both parties may continue to use the "Swing Remix" brand independently, with a formal 
agreement detailing specific terms, such as prospective and retrospective royalties for use of the 
brand, and scheduling and geographic limitations, to prevent future conflicts. 

 Brand Discontinuation:  

Alternatively, if mutual usage proves untenable, both parties agree to cease using the "Swing 
Remix" name altogether. The associated Facebook page would be deleted, and each party will 
operate under new brand names going forward. 

 
We believe these options provide a path toward a fair and amicable resolution. We are likewise 

open to further discussion to refine these terms or explore other possible solutions. Please confirm 
receipt of this letter and inform us of Mr. Weisbond’s intentions moving forward. 

Yours sincerely, 

Sabrina Bazelais 
Sabrina Bazelais, Esq.  

SB/jcs 
cc: Timothy C. Connor, Esquire 
      Paolo Lanna (info@swingremix.com)  
 
Enclosures: 

- Copy of the Partnership Agreement 
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